
Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 

 
 
AGENDA 
 
A.    MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 
B. ROLL CALL 
C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
D. PROCLAMATIONS (Acknowledgement) 

none 
E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. December 9, 2024 Regular Minutes 
 

F. APPOINTMENTS to BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 
1. Trish Winchell is nominated for appointment as a fill in, to the Library Board by Mayor Terry Crow. 

2. Jay Trudeau is nominated for appointment to the Loop Special Business District by Mayor Terry Crow. 

3. Peggy Holly is nominated for appointment to the Economic Development Retail Tax Board by Mayor 
Terry Crow. 

4. Matt Belz is nominated for appointment to the Plan Commission by Mayor Terry Crow. 

5. Renau Bozarth is nominated for re-appointment to the Loop Special Business District by Mayor Terry 
Crow. 

6. Maryanne Coley is nominated for appointment to the Pension Board by Councilmember Stacy Clay. 

7. Chris Trahan and Peter Holmes are nominated for re-appointment to the Historic Preservation  
Commission by Councilember Stacy Clay. 
 

G. SWEARING IN TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 
1. Christopher Blumenhorst, Cirri Moran, Susan Plassmeyer, Alice Boon and Phillip Eastin were 

sworn in the Solid Waste and Recycling Rate Study Task Force via Zoom on December 17, 2025.  
 

H. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (Total of 15 minutes allowed) 
Request to Address the Council Forms are located on the ledge just inside the entrance.   
Please complete and place the form in the basket at the front of the room. 

 
The public may also submit written comments must be received no later than 12:00 p.m. the day of the meeting.  Comments may be  sent via email to:  
councilcomments@ucitymo.org, or mailed to the City Hall – 6801 Delmar Blvd. – Attention City Clerk.  Such comments will be provided to City Council prior 
to the meeting.  Comments will be made a part of the official record and made accessible to the public online following the meeting. Please note, when 
submitting your comments, a name and address must be provided.  Please also not if your comment is on an agenda or non-agenda item. If a name and 
address are not provided, the provided comment will not be recorded in the official record. 
 
I. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
J. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

none 
K. CONSENT AGENDA (1 voice vote required) 

1.  For the 3rd Ward Plan 
2.  Office 365 Renewal 
3.  Ameren Electric Service Easement - Annex+Trinity 
4.  Annual Tree Trimming Project - PRF25-04 

  

MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 

CITY HALL, Fifth Floor 
6801 Delmar Blvd., University City, Missouri 63130 

Monday, January 13, 2025 
6:30 p.m. 

mailto:councilcomments@ucitymo.org


Page 2 of 2 
 

 
L. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT –  (voice vote on each item as needed) 

1. City Manager Updates 
 

M. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  (2nd and 3rd readings – roll call vote required) 
1. BILL 9563 – AN ORDINANCE FIXING THE COMPENSATION TO BE PAID TO CITY OFFICIALS 

AND EMPLOYEES AS ENUMERATED HEREIN FROM AND AFTER JANUARY 13, 2025, AND 
REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 7360. 

 
N. NEW BUSINESS 
 
Resolutions   (voice vote required)  

none 
Bills   (Introduction and 1st reading - no vote required) 

  none 
O. COUNCIL REPORTS/BUSINESS 

1. Boards and Commission appointments needed 
2. Council liaison reports on Boards and Commissions 
3. Boards, Commissions and Task Force minutes 
4. Other Discussions/Business 

 
P. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (continued if needed) 

Q. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

R. EXECUTIVE SESSION (roll call vote required) 
Motion to go into a Closed Session according to Missouri Revised Statutes 610.021 (1) Legal actions, causes 
of action or litigation involving a public governmental body and any confidential or privileged communications 
between a public governmental body or its representatives or attorneys. 
 

S. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The public may also observe via: 
Live Stream via YouTube: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCyN1EJ_-Q22918E9EZimWoQ 
 
 
Posted January 10, 2025. 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCyN1EJ_-Q22918E9EZimWoQ


December 9, 2024 - Regular Session Minutes       Page 1 of 9 

 

AGENDA 

A. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER
At the Regular Session of the City Council of University City held on Monday, December 9,
2024, Mayor Terry Crow called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.

B. ROLL CALL
In addition to the Mayor, the following members of Council were present:

Councilmember Stacy Clay 
Councilmember John Tieman 
Councilmember Steven McMahon 
Councilmember Jeffrey Hales; (via video conference) 

` Councilmember Dennis Fuller 
Councilmember Bwayne Smotherson 

Also in attendance were City Manager, Gregory Rose; City Attorney, John F. Mulligan Jr.; 
Interim Director of Public Works, Mirela Celaj; Director of Parks & Recreation, Darin Girdler, and 
Director of Finance, Keith Cole. 

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Mr. Rose requested that Item K (4) be moved to the City Manager's Report.  Voice vote on the
request to move Item K (4) carried unanimously.

D. PROCLAMATIONS (Acknowledgement)
None

E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
1. November 25, 2024, Study Session; Third Ward Housing & Revitalization Plan, was moved

by Councilmember McMahon, it was seconded by Councilmember Fuller, and the motion
carried unanimously.

2. November 25, 2024, Regular Minutes was moved by Councilmember Tieman, it was
seconded by Councilmember McMahon, and the motion carried unanimously.

F. APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS
1. Susan Plassmeyer is nominated for appointment to the Solid Waste & Recycling Task

Force by Councilmember Dennis Fuller, it was seconded by Councilmember Smotherson
and the motion carried unanimously.

G. SWEARING IN TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS
1. John Solodar was sworn into the Park Commission on December 4, 2024, in the clerk’s

office.

H. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (Total of 15 minutes allowed)
Request to Address the Council Forms are located on the ledge just inside the entrance.
Please complete and place the form in the basket at the front of the room.

MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 

CITY HALL, Fifth Floor 
6801 Delmar Blvd., University City, Missouri 63130 

Monday, December 9, 2024 
6:30 p.m. 

E - 1 - 1



 

December 9, 2024 - Regular Session Minutes                  Page 2 of 9 
 

Written comments must be received no later than 12:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting.  Comments 
may be sent via email to:  councilcomments@ucitymo.org, or mailed to the City Hall – 6801 Delmar Blvd. 
– Attention City Clerk.  Such comments will be provided to the City Council prior to the meeting.  
Comments will be made a part of the official record and made accessible to the public online following the 
meeting.  
 
Please note that when submitting your comments, a name and address must be provided.  Please also 
note whether your comment is on an agenda or a non-agenda item.  If a name and address are not 
provided, the comment will not be recorded in the official record. 

 
Mayor Crow acknowledged that there were no written or verbal comments. 
 

I. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
None 

J. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
None 

K. CONSENT AGENDA - (1 voice vote required) 
1. 2025 Legislative Platform 
2. Funding Approval Form and Grant Agreement for FEMA's Flood Mitigation Assistance 

(FMA) grant. 
3. Funding Approval Form and Grant Agreement for FEMA's Hazard Mitigation Grant Program 

(HMGP) grant. 
4. Tree Removal Contract for Pershing and Ferguson Improvement Project; (removed) 
5. Acceptance of ARPA Grant for Lucas Mechanical CPR device 
6. Disposal Service Agreement Amendment 
 

Councilmember Smotherson moved to approve Items 1, 2, 3, 5, and 6 of the Consent Agenda, it 
was seconded by Councilmember Clay, and the motion carried unanimously. 
 

L. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT – (Voice vote on each item as needed) 
1. Tree Removal Contract for Pershing and Ferguson Improvement Project 

Mr. Rose stated staff is requesting that Council approve a contract with Omni Tree Services 
for the removal of 59 trees on Pershing and 18 trees on Ferguson.  The Interim Director of 
Public Works, Mirela Celaj, was asked to provide Council with an overview of the project.   

 
Ms. Celaj stated the Pershing Avenue and Ferguson Avenue Improvement Projects are scheduled 
for construction in 2025.  Although tree removal was not included in the initial application filed in 
2021, further assessments conducted by the project consultant and the City Arborist revealed that 
certain trees were in conflict with the street and sidewalk construction from a construction, utility, 
and ADA perspective. 

• Trees damaged by the sidewalk may cause future hazards or death of the trees. 
• The fact that the right-of-way is so close to the sidewalk creates a conflict with utilities that 

cannot be offset to gain more space in those locations; especially as the trees continue to 
grow. 

• ADA regulations do not allow you to carve around the trees and narrow the width of the 
sidewalk 

 
Ms. Celaj stated staff has determined that hiring a contractor to remove the trees before the 
construction phase would be more economical and would not cause any delays to the project's 
timeline.  Pictures of the existing trees were provided to Council to show a visual interpretation of 
what will happen if the trees are not removed before construction. 
 
Mr. Rose stated he had received questions regarding the outreach that would occur during the 
removal process and replacement of the trees.  So, he would ask the Director of Parks & 
Recreation, Darin Girdler to explain the removal and replacement process.  
 

E - 1 - 2

mailto:councilcomments@ucitymo.org


 

December 9, 2024 - Regular Session Minutes                  Page 3 of 9 
 

Mr. Girdler stated his understanding is that the contract calls for the trees to be removed 
immediately and a replacement program will be initiated in the spring.  The City Forester will 
choose the species and diameter of the replacement trees. 
 
Mayor Crow stated having lived at 6828 Pershing he knows exactly how much everyone enjoys 
these trees, and 59 trees is a lot to be removed.  He stated while Council understands the need for 
this to happen, there has got to be some communication to the folks being impacted.  Otherwise, 
the City is going to have a maelstrom of opposition to a great project.  So, as we're sitting here on 
December the 9th and these trees are scheduled to be removed in January, he hopes that the City 
has already started talking to these folks.  
 
 Ms. Celaj stated that they were waiting for Council's approval before notifying the public about 
these removals and explaining the process on the City's website.  
 
Mayor Crow stated no offense, but putting this on the website is not enough.  There has to be some 
form of outreach to individual homeowners who are going to have their 100-year-old tree removed.  
There has to be an aggressive communication plan because he would hate for a good idea to run 
afoul because the City did not put forward the simple courtesy of contacting people and letting them 
know why this is happening.   
 
Mr. Rose stated he was not aware that the removal was scheduled to start in January, and believed 
that a very comprehensive communication strategy would have to be rolled out. 
 
Ms. Celaj stated her suggestion would be to send a letter to the residents being impacted outlining 
the need for these removals two weeks prior to the commencement of this project.   
 
Mr. Rose stated at a minimum, staff will issue letters, but he would also like them to distribute door 
hangers indicating that residents will have an opportunity to ask questions.  That being said, he will 
make sure that the process of removing these trees does not occur until this communication has 
taken place. 
 
Mayor Crow stated he thinks all of his colleagues are supportive of this project, but it is going to 
impact a lot of people.  So, if approved, it must contain a timeline to ensure that everyone is 
notified, and they are provided with an opportunity to express any concerns they might have.  
  
Councilmember Clay echoed the need for a communication strategy and stated while he can't 
speak for everybody who lives on Ferguson, he thinks most of the frustration will be centered on 
the fact that nobody took the time to inform them about why their tree is being removed.  So, he 
thinks the door hangers are an excellent idea.  
 
Ms. Celaj stated she would consult with the City Attorney before finalizing the draft letter to ensure 
that she uses the correct verbiage to inform residents about how this will affect their property and 
offer them an opportunity to contact the City with any questions they might have. 
 
Councilmember Tieman stated this will have a huge impact from the aspect of Green Practices, so 
he hopes that this letter will also include information about the plan to replace the trees being 
removed.     
 
Ms. Celaj stated she would make sure that is added to the letter.  
 
Councilmember Fuller reminded everyone of what happened when Big Bend was widened without 
any communication to the public; people chained themselves to the trees.   Another minor point to 
include in this communication is the fact that U City has been designated as a Tree City.  He stated 
this topic was discussed by the Urban Forestry Commission, where the main focus was on 
replacement trees.  As a result, they will be making a presentation to Council sometime in March 
about the issue of canopy covers. 

E - 1 - 3



 

December 9, 2024 - Regular Session Minutes                  Page 4 of 9 
 

Mr. Girdler stated they would also include the fact that tree replacements would not occur until fall, 
since that is the best time to plant them. 
 
Councilmember McMahon stated this is going to be a balancing act between the benefits residents 
will receive versus the detriment of losing their trees.  For years, his constituents on Pershing have 
been asking for their street to be fixed.  So, this communication needs to highlight that these trees 
must be removed to achieve their demand. 
 
Mr. Mulligan stated to clarify the process; the bid proposal provides that within ten (10) calendar 
days after being awarded the contract the parties will execute the agreement, and be issued a 
Notice to Proceed, which states that they have ninety (90) days to complete this work.  So, if 
Council is contemplating any modifications this would be the time to discuss them. 
 
Mayor Crow stated he thinks Council has discussed modifications to make sure that the execution 
of this contract does not occur until after communication has been made on several occasions to 
the homeowners on Ferguson and Pershing. 
 
Mr. Rose stated he was comfortable with the modifications identified, and moving forward with 
Council's consideration of the project.   
 
Councilmember Tieman moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember Clay, and the 
motion carried unanimously. 
 

2. City Manager Updates 
Mr. Rose stated there are no updates. 
 

3. First (1st) Quarter Financial Report - September 30, 2024 
Mr. Rose stated that the First Quarter Financial Report will be presented by the Director of 
Finance, Keith Cole. 
 

General Fund - Revenues 
Adjusted Budget     $25,390,750 
YTD Actual      $4,060,635 
Actual as % of Adjusted Budget   16.0% 
Increase/ (Decrease) compared to 
the same quarter of FY2024    $1,276,918 
 
Key Points: 
 Increase in Gross Receipts Tax of roughly $101,990, due to receiving more revenue in 

electric and water than what was received in the 1st Quarter of FY24.  
 Increase in service charges of roughly $216,930, largely from the collection of Ambulance 

Service charges. 
 Increase in Interest Revenue of roughly $92,020, due to favorable market conditions in the 

1st Quarter. 
 Increase in Other Revenues of roughly $791,490, largely from the receipt of funds from the 

Subtext Development in Issuance Fees, Legal Fees, and a payment from Seafood City for 
an outstanding bill. 

 Increase in Inspection Fees & Permits of roughly $82,500, due to Building & Zoning permits. 
 
Note:  The bulk of property tax revenue the City receives will come in during December 2024 and 
January 2025.       
 
Overall, revenues as a percent of budget show an increase of 6.4% when compared to the same 
quarter in FY24. 
 

E - 1 - 4



 

December 9, 2024 - Regular Session Minutes                  Page 5 of 9 
 

General Fund – Revenues Percentage as of YTD Actuals 

Property Taxes
1.5%

Sales & Use Tax
17.0%

Intergovernmental
6.3%

Grants
0.0%

Licenses
0.3%

Gross Receipts
28.8%

Inspection Fees 
and Permits

7.3%

Charges for 
Municipal 
Services

8.5%

Parks and 
Recreation Fees

1.6%

Municipal Court 
and Parking

5.0%

Interest
3.1%

Other Revenues
20.5%

 
 
General Fund - Expenditures 
Adjusted Budget     $30,568,371 
YTD Actual      $7,305,970 
Actual as % of Adjusted Budget   23.9% 
Increase/ (Decrease) compared to 
the same quarter of FY2024    $673,083 
 
Key Points: 
 Increase in expenditures for the Police Department of roughly $374,400, due to an increase 

in personnel services, such as overtime and medical insurance.  Of the $374,400, roughly 
$236,980 is due to payroll and how the pay period falls between fiscal years during the first 
part of July.   

 Increase in expenditures for the Fire Department of roughly $124,940, largely due to an 
increase in personnel services and how the pay period falls between fiscal years during the 
first part of July. 

 Increase in expenditures for Aquatics of roughly $117,700, largely due to professional 
services; (Midwest Pool Management), electricity, and water. 

 Increase in expenditures for Centennial Commons of roughly $45,600, largely due to an 
increase in part-time salaries and electricity.  

 
Overall, expenditures as a percent of the budget increased by 2.8% when compared to the same 
quarter in FY2024. 
 
General Fund – Expenditures Percentage as of YTD Actuals 
 

     Total Expenditure 14,611,940$          200.0%
Legislative

0.9%
City Manager's Office

2.4%

Communications
0.9% Human Resources

1.0%
Finance

4.4%
Information 
Technology

2.5%

Municipal Court
1.6%

Police
36.0%Fire

22.8%

Public Works - Admin
0.6%

Public Area 
Maintenance

3.4%

Facil ities 
Maintenance

4.0%

Public Works - Capital 
Imp

0.6%

Planning & 
Development

6.9%

Parks & Recreation -
Parks Maint

5.9%

Community 
Center
0.3%

Aquatics
2.5%

Centennial Commons
3.2%

Parks & 
Recreation -
Capital Imp

0.0%

 
 
Economic Development Retail Sales Tax - Revenues 
Adjusted Budget     $1,200,300 
YTD Actual      $92,722 
Actual as % of Adjusted Budget   7.7% 

E - 1 - 5



 

December 9, 2024 - Regular Session Minutes                  Page 6 of 9 
 

Increase/ (Decrease) compared to 
the same quarter of FY2024    $2,452 
 
Key Points: 
 Sales Tax revenue for the first quarter of FY2025 has shown a slight increase of roughly 

2.7% when compared to the same quarter of FY2024.  
 Of the $92,722 sales tax revenue, roughly $52,340, or 56.4%, was generated from the TIF.   

 
Note:  Sales tax revenue is based on point-of-sale 
 
Economic Development Retail Sales Tax - Expenditures 
Adjusted Budget     $882,915 
YTD Actual      $105,435 
Actual as % of Adjusted Budget   5.7% 
Increase/ (Decrease) compared to 
the same quarter of FY2024    $63,561 
 
Key Points: 
 Increase in expenditures mainly from the Façade Improvement Program and professional 

services.     
 
Capital Improvement Sales Tax - Revenues 
Adjusted Budget     $2,940,200  
YTD Actual      $413,386  
Actual as % of Adjusted Budget   14.1%  
Increase/ (Decrease) compared to  
the same quarter of FY2024    $155,758  
 
Key Points: 
 Increase due to reimbursement from the Westgate Ave Improvement Project and an excess 

cost-share refund for River Des Peres of $54,110. 
 
Note:  Revenue is generated from pooled sales tax from other cities in the county which is based 
on per capita.    
 
Capital Improvement Sales Tax - Expenditures 
Adjusted Budget     $2,417,198  
YTD Actual      $136,850  
Actual as % of Adjusted Budget   5.7%  
Increase/ (Decrease) compared to 
The same quarter of FY2024    $(14,838)  
 
Key Points: 
 Decrease in expenditures mainly from capital improvement projects that have been 

budgeted and scheduled to be completed in the third quarter of FY25.   
 
Park and Stormwater Sales Tax - Revenues 
Adjusted Budget     $2,100,200  
YTD Actual      $150,808  
Actual as % of Adjusted Budget   7.2%  
Increase/ (Decrease) compared to 
The same quarter of FY2024    $(2,225)  
 
Key Points: 
 Sales Tax revenue for the first quarter of FY2025 has shown a slight decrease of roughly 

1.4% when compared to the same quarter of FY2024.  

E - 1 - 6



 

December 9, 2024 - Regular Session Minutes                  Page 7 of 9 
 

 Of the $150,808 sales tax revenue roughly $70,045, or 46.4%, was generated from the TIF.   
 

Note:  Sales tax revenue is based on the point of sale.  Before the base amount is met everything 
goes into parks.  After the base amount is met, revenue is split 50/50 between parks and 
stormwater. 
 
Park and Stormwater Sales Tax - Expenditures 
Adjusted Budget     $1,401,865  
YTD Actual      $440,702  
Actual as % of Adjusted Budget   31.4%  
Increase/ (Decrease) compared to  
the same quarter of FY2024    $357,041  
 
Key Points: 
 Increase in expenditures mainly from upfront costs to the Army Corps of Engineers' OMCI 

Stormwater Reimbursement Detention Basin 4 Project.  
 
Public Safety Sales Tax - Revenues 
Adjusted Budget     $2,400,200 
YTD Actual      $191,560  
Actual as % of Adjusted Budget   8.0%  
Increase/ (Decrease) compared to  
the same quarter of FY2024    $(20,874)  
 
Key Points: 
 A small decrease, but thus far, revenues appear to be within reason when compared to the 

1st quarter of FY2024.   
 
Public Safety Sales Tax - Expenditures 
Adjusted Budget     $75,314  
YTD Actual      $(170,134)  
Actual as % of Adjusted Budget   (225.9%)  
Increase/ (Decrease) compared to 
the same quarter of FY2024    $(6,037)  
 
Key Points: 
 The negative expenditures are due to a check being voided in July, which appears to have 

been done in error.  (Staff is looking into the matter to achieve a resolution.)        
 
Fire Protection Service Sales Tax - Revenues 
Adjusted Budget     $1,050,000 
YTD Actual      $75,404 
Actual as % of Adjusted Budget   7.2% 
Increase/ (Decrease) compared to 
the same quarter of FY2024    $(1,113) 
 
Key Points: 
 Sales Tax revenue for the first quarter of FY2025 has shown a slight decrease of roughly 

1.4% when compared to the same quarter of FY2024.  Revenue appears to be within 
reason.  

 Of the $75,404 sales tax revenue, roughly $35,020, or 46.4%, was generated from the TIF.   
 

Note:  FY2025 Budget, Fire Protection Service Sales Tax was broken out into a separate fund.  
Sales tax revenue is based on the point of sale.  After the base amount is met, revenue is split 
50/50 between the City and the TIF. 
 

E - 1 - 7



 

December 9, 2024 - Regular Session Minutes                  Page 8 of 9 
 

Fire Protection Service Sales Tax - Expenditures 
 No Operational Expenditures have been budgeted for FY2025. 

 
Mr. Rose asked if it was correct that the balance for this fund is transferred into the General Fund?  
Mr. Cole stated that is correct; while it's not considered operational, it is transferred into the 
General Fund. 
 
Councilmember Clay posed the following questions to Mr. Cole: 
Q.  Perhaps, it's not a significant number, but does the increase from Inspection Fees and 
Permits represent one project or multiple projects?  
A.  It's a cumulative of multiple projects throughout the City. 
Q.  While you may not be able to provide me with an answer today, it's something that I 
would love to get sooner rather than later.  How should members of Council answer this 
question being posed by residents without these tables and graphs; "How much more 
money are we getting from the Market at Olive versus the Old Jeffrey's Plaza"? 
A.  It entails a number of factors, so I would have to dig into the revenue being generated from 
Costco. 
A.  (Mr. Rose):  We conducted a fiscal impact analysis when we were examining the cost benefits 
of the Market at Olive.  And the results caused us to believe that the City would receive roughly a 
million dollars in additional revenue from the project.  But as Mr. Cole has indicated, at this point, 
we will need to dig into the revenue being generated to determine whether that estimate is actually 
being realized. 
 
Councilmember Smotherson posed the following questions to Mr. Cole: 
Q.  Perhaps I missed it, but this is the first time I've heard that TIF funds were being 
allocated to the Fire Protection Service Sales Tax.  Can you explain that? 
A.  That was a part of the TIF Agreement, which is broken down between the Economic 
Development Retail Sales Tax, Fire Sales Tax, and the Park & Stormwater Sales Tax. 
Q.  If the General Fund had an increase of 6.4%, could you explain why the Park and 
Stormwater Sales Tax Revenues would have a slight decrease of 1.4% if they are receiving 
TIF funds?   
A.  (Mr. Rose):  It may be an issue of semantics around how we define things.  So, I would ask Mr. 
Mulligan to provide an explanation. 
 
Mr. Mulligan stated under Missouri law governing TIFs there is what they call a top half and a 
bottom half of the sales tax.  For instance, if you have a half-cent for Parks & Stormwater, 25% 
would go to take care of TIF obligations and the other 25% would go to Park & Stormwater 
obligations.  The same is true for Fire Protection Services.  He stated this structure was created 
several years ago and went into effect when Council approved the TIF. 
 
Councilmember McMahon asked if the increase in ambulance fees was from the previous overdue 
bills or the current bills?  Mr. Cole stated the increase is from the City's current collections. 
 
Mayor Crow stated he would like to follow up on Councilmember Clay's question because he 
assumes that they are all getting this same question; and for him, it's at least once a week. While 
it's apparent that the Market at Olive is doing well, it's a tough comparison for anyone to make 
because it's such a stark difference from Jeffrey's Plaza.  But it would be nice to say, "Here's 
exactly where we are".  So, if 46% of the increase in funds is due to the TIF, would it be accurate to 
say but for the TIF we would not have this 46% increase?    
 
Mr. Mulligan stated there is a TIF Monitor; a tax attorney, who provides a quarterly report with 
revenue information.  There's a 1% SID tax, and the report tells you how much SID tax was 
collected during the previous quarter.  For example, let's say the SID collected 1 million dollars; that 
would equal to your project generating 100 million dollars in retail sales.  So, he simply would have 
to check with the Monitor to get the exact numbers from his recent report. 

E - 1 - 8



 

December 9, 2024 - Regular Session Minutes                  Page 9 of 9 
 

 
 With respect to the Economic Development Retail Sales Tax (EDRST) that 0.0025 percent, 
which represents the top and bottom half of these taxes is not shared, the City gets 100%.  Mr. 
Mulligan stated the projections for this project as it stands today, are well in excess of $100 million, 
which means the City is getting $250,000 in additional EDRST funds.  And of course, once 
Dierbergs and Target open, those numbers will be a lot higher. 
 
Mayor Crow stated he thinks it would be good for Council to have the ability to reference what the 
City is doing now versus what was done in the past.  However, that might be difficult to do since 
there weren't a lot of taxes being generated on the properties within Jeffrey's Plaza. 
 
Mr. Mulligan stated that information is also available, and it is a very small number.  Information on 
the SID is done in increments, so it's easy to calculate. 
 
Councilmember Clay stated since he and his colleagues won't have an opportunity to sit down with 
folks and show them a spreadsheet about what is going on at the Market at Olive when framing a 
response they could use, he would ask staff to think in terms of something spiffy and simple that 
can be relayed in a 2-minute conversation.   He stated he thinks it would truly be beneficial to be 
able to explain the significance of this development and what the Council has been able to do. 
   

M. UNFINISHED BUSINESS - (Roll call vote required on 2nd and 3rd readings) 
None 

N. NEW BUSINESS 
 Resolutions - (Voice vote required) 

None 
 Bills - (No vote required on introduction and 1st reading) 
    Introduced by Councilmember McMahon 

1. BILL 9563 – AN ORDINANCE FIXING THE COMPENSATION TO BE PAID TO CITY 
OFFICIALS AND EMPLOYEES AS ENUMERATED HEREIN FROM AND AFTER 
JANUARY 13, 2025, AND REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 7360.  Bill Number 9563 was 
read for the first time. 

O. COUNCIL REPORTS/BUSINESS 
1. Boards and Commission appointments needed 
2. Council liaison reports on Boards and Commissions 

Councilmember Tieman stated he would like to commend members of the Arts & Letters 
Commission, Superintendent Sharonica L. Hardin-Bartley, Councilmember Smotherson, 
and everyone else who participated in organizing the Returning Artist Program.  This year 
featured Grammy-nominated musician Christopher J. Thomas, a 1988 U City graduate.  
The reception, held on December 2nd was a beautiful event.  Speeches centered on Mr. 
Thomas' accomplishments within U City schools were moving and the performance he gave 
with his wife was first-class.   

3. Boards, Commissions, and Task Force minutes 
4. Other Discussions/Business 

P. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (continued if needed) 

Q. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
None 

Councilmember Tieman moved to adjourn the Regular Session, it was seconded by Councilmember 
McMahon, and the motion carried unanimously. 
 

R. ADJOURNMENT  
Mayor Crow thanked everyone for their participation and adjourned the Regular Session at 7:21 
p.m. 

 
LaRette Reese 
City Clerk, MRCC 

E - 1 - 9





CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

CA20250113-01

For the 3rd Ward Plan 

Brooke A. Sharp Economic Development
Consent Yes

City Manager recommends acceptance of the "For the 3rd Ward Plan" that has been created by the 
Third Ward Housing and Revitalization Task Force.  Further that direction is given as programs are 
created to place those proposed programs on a regular Council agenda for consideration.

The plan lays out goals, priorities, and recommendations for investing $10 million into the 
third ward over the life of the Market at Olive TIF 

The Housing and Third Ward Revitalization Task Force worked with consultant Yard & Co. 
to create the For the 3rd Ward Plan that includes recommendations on reinvesting $10 
million in TIF proceeds into the third ward.  

The Housing and Third Ward Revitalization Task Force has worked with consultant Yard & 
Company to create the For the 3rd Ward Plan which makes recommendations on how to 
reinvest the $10 million in TIF proceeds from the Market at Olive Development into the third 
ward. 

For the 3rd Ward Plan 

Economic Development  
Prudent Fiscal Management  
Community Quality of Life and Amenities  
Encourage High Quality Growth

City Manager, Gregrory Rose January 13, 2025

K - 1 - 1



K - 1 - 2



K - 1 - 3



K - 1 - 4



K - 1 - 5



K - 1 - 6



K - 1 - 7



K - 1 - 8



K - 1 - 9



K - 1 - 10



K - 1 - 11



K - 1 - 12



K - 1 - 13



K - 1 - 14



K - 1 - 15



K - 1 - 16



K - 1 - 17



K - 1 - 18



K - 1 - 19



K - 1 - 20



K - 1 - 21



K - 1 - 22



K - 1 - 23



K - 1 - 24



K - 1 - 25



K - 1 - 26



K - 1 - 27



K - 1 - 28



K - 1 - 29



K - 1 - 30



K - 1 - 31



K - 1 - 32



K - 1 - 33



K - 1 - 34



K - 1 - 35



K - 1 - 36



K - 1 - 37



K - 1 - 38



K - 1 - 39



K - 1 - 40



K - 1 - 41



K - 1 - 42



K - 1 - 43



K - 1 - 44



K - 1 - 45



K - 1 - 46



K - 1 - 47



K - 1 - 48



K - 1 - 49



K - 1 - 50



K - 1 - 51



K - 1 - 52



K - 1 - 53



K - 1 - 54



K - 1 - 55



K - 1 - 56



K - 1 - 57



K - 1 - 58



K - 1 - 59



K - 1 - 60



K - 1 - 61



K - 1 - 62



K - 1 - 63



K - 1 - 64



K - 1 - 65



K - 1 - 66



K - 1 - 67



K - 1 - 68



K - 1 - 69



K - 1 - 70



K - 1 - 71



K - 1 - 72



K - 1 - 73



K - 1 - 74



K - 1 - 75



K - 1 - 76



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

CA20250113-02

MS Office 365 Renewal 

Brooke A. Sharp IT
Consent No 

City Manager recommends approval. 

The Technology Services account will be reduced by $40,921.37

$40,921.37 01-18-11 6560

Technology Services Technology Services

This is a contract renewal for year three of a three year contract for MS Office 365 licenses.  

This agenda item asks the Council to approve the year 3 renewal of MS Office 365 suite of 
services which include email and Microsoft Office Suite applications.  

Renewal Invoice 

Prudent Fiscal Management 

City Manager, Gregory Rose January 13, 2025

K - 2 - 1



K - 2 - 2



K - 2 - 3



K - 2 - 4



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

CA20250113-03

Ameren Electric Service Easement - Annex+Trinity 

Darin Girdler, Director of Parks & Recreation Police/Courts - All
Consent No

The City Manager recommends authorizitng his approval to execute of the attached 
easement document for the electrical service to the Annex and Trinity buildings.

N/A

This easement is necessary for Ameren to provide electrical service to the Annex and Trinity 
buildings as a part of the overall rehabilitation and restoration project.  This new service will 
require a new transformer that will take up one (1) space of the 'upper' Trinity parking lot.  
Staff, the architects and consultants recommend approval as well.

Easement Document 
Easement Diagram

Improved Infrastructure 

City Manager, Gregory Rose 01/13/25

K - 3 - 1



RE005.22.09.08 1 

REMS INFORMATION 

Agreement ID: 
Project ID: 

EASEMENT 
(Underground Electric) 

6801 Delmar Blvd. 
Archview-Geraldine 
Geraldine District 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, this _______ day of ____________________, 20____, CITY 
OF UNIVERSITY CITY, 6801 DELMAR BLVD, ST. LOUIS, MO 63130, its successors and assigns, 
whether one or more and whether an individual, individuals, a corporation, or other legal entity (hereinafter 
"Grantor"), for and in consideration of the sum of One and No/100th Dollars ($1.00) and other valuable 
consideration in hand paid, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, does hereby grant unto 
UNION ELECTRIC COMPANY d/b/a AMEREN MISSOURI , a Missouri corporation, its successors and 
assigns (hereinafter "Grantee"), a perpetual easement (hereinafter "Easement") with the right, privilege, 
and authority of Grantee, its agents, contractors, and subcontractors to survey, stake, construct, 
reconstruct, replace, use, operate, maintain, patrol, inspect, protect, repair, relocate, modify, add to the 
number of, abandon or retire in place, and remove an electric and communication line or lines consisting 
of wires, cables, conduits, fixtures, appliances, and other appurtenances thereto, including above-ground 
transformers, cabinets, and pedestals (hereinafter individually and collectively "Facilities"), together with all 
rights and privileges for the exercise and enjoyment of the Easement rights and the authority to extend to 
any other party the right to use, pursuant to the provisions hereof, upon, over, across and under the 
following described land in St. Louis County, State of Missouri, to-wit: 

A ten foot (10') wide strip of land being situated in BLK PT 4 & BLK LOTS 1 THRU 3 & LOT 
PT 4 & CLEMENS ESTATE LOT PT 9 & HARVARD AVE PT as evidenced in Deed 

Document No. 1930051500027 in the St. Louis County, Missouri Recorder's Office.

The strip of land where the Grantee's facilities shall be located hereunder ("Easement 
Strips") shall be ten feet (10') the centerline of which shall be the centerline of Grantee's 
facilities, as-built.   Said strip of land shall generally and as nearly as practicable as shown 
illustrated on the drawing marked Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part thereof.  

Locator No.        18J621276 
 (hereinafter "Easement Area"). 

K - 3 - 2



RE005.22.09.08 2 

Grantor also conveys the right of ingress and egress to and over the Easement Area and premises of 
Grantor adjoining the same, for all purposes herein stated, together with the right to trim, control the growth, 
cut and remove or cause to be removed at any time and from time to time, by any means, any and all brush, 
bushes, saplings, trees, roots, undergrowth, rock, over-hanging branches, and other obstructions upon, 
over, and under the surface of said Easement Area and of the premises of Grantor adjoining the same 
deemed by Grantee to interfere with the exercise and enjoyment of Grantee’s rights hereunder, endanger 
the safety of the Facilities, or in order for Grantee to maintain compliance with the minimum clearance 
requirements of the National Electric Safety Code. 

Grantee shall be responsible for actual damages (except the trimming, controlling of growth, cutting, and 
removal of trees and other vegetation) occurring as a result of the Grantee's exercise of the Easement 
rights hereinabove conveyed and shall reimburse the owner thereof for such loss or damages. 

Grantor, for itself, its successors and assigns, does hereby warrant and covenant unto Grantee, (1) that 
Grantor is the owner of the Easement Area and has the full right and authority to grant this Easement, (2) 
that Grantee may quietly enjoy the Easement for the purposes herein stated, and (3) that Grantor will not 
create or permit any building or other obstruction or condition of any kind or character upon Grantor's 
premises that will interfere with the Grantee's exercise and enjoyment of the Easement rights hereinabove 
conveyed. 

This Easement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Missouri. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has hereunto caused this Easement to be executed on the date 
hereinabove written. 

CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 

(Signature)_________________________________ 

Print Name/Title_____________________________ 

K - 3 - 3



RE005.22.09.08 3 

ALL PURPOSE NOTARY ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

STATE OF ____________ 

COUNTY OF ___________ } SS 

On this _______ day of ____________________, 20____, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public 
in and for said State, personally appeared (print or type names): 

PRINT NAME/TITLE  PRINT NAME/TITLE 
to me known to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged 
that he/she/they executed the same as his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their 
signature(s) on the instrument the person(s) or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, 
executed the instrument. 

Capacity Claimed By Signator(s) 

 Individual(s)  Corporate  Limited Liability Company  Partner(s) 
 Trustee(s) Title(s) of Officer(s): Member(s)/Manager(s):  Limited Partnership 
 Executor(s)  General Partnership 
 Administrator(s)  Other (Specify Below): 
 Attorney-In-Fact 
 Conservator(s) 
 Guardian(s) 

My Commission Expires Notary Public 

Prepared By: MARY D. KIMBROUGH 

Return To: 1901 CHOUTEAU AVE., MC700, ST. LOUIS, 
MO 63103 

MDK 
WR#: KB50330 
Facility Name:  
[location reference or coordinates] 
01/08/2025 

K - 3 - 4



6801

27
0'

10'

NNot To Scale
MISSOURI
Ameren

DOJM WR # / MAXIMO WO #

PREFIX / VOLUME  /  PAGEHIGHEST VOLTAGE

OPERATING CENTER SHEET # DRAWING DATE

LOCATION

DESIGNER

CIRCUIT

PROJECT NAME / CUSTOMER NAME

PROJECT TYPE

FINANCIAL WO #

12/12/2024 1:58 PM

UCITY ANNEX TRINITY

6801 DELMAR BLVD

LAT TO PAD GERALDINE

KB50330

4kV 188008

E. AKUSHE 1 OF 1 12-12-24

No extraordinary safety concerns found.
Focus

Body Mechanics   ●   Eyes on Path/Work   ●   Line of Fire
Pre-Job Inspection   ●   Proper Tool/EquipmentAPPDDESCRIPTIONREV DATE DES

"EXHIBIT A"
KB50330

6801 DELMAR BLVD
11/15/24

AMEREN TO SECURE A 10' WIDE
ASBUILT EASEMENT FOR THE
CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE
OF UNDERGROUND FACILITIES ON THE
FOLLOWING PARCELS SHOWN HEREIN

PARCEL ID: 18J620978
OWNER: UNIVERSITY CITY

K - 3 - 5



K - 3 - 6



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

CA20250113-04

Annual Tree Trimming Project - PRF25-04 

Darin Girdler, Director of Parks & Recreation Forestry - All
Consent No

The City Manager recommends approval of the attached lowest most responsible bidder 
Gamma Tree Experts in the amount of $132,275.00.

Included in the 2025 budget of $200,000.

$132,275.00 14-50-90_8100

14 - Parks & Stormwater Sales Tax

Annual tree trimming expenses to continue our five year cycle.

Gamma Tree Experts is a known vendor of ours and has performed this type of work for us 
in the past.  We are confident we can work with well with them.

PRF25-04

Recommendation 
Bid Tabulation aa

Improved Infrastructure
Public Safety 

City Manager, Gregrory Rose 01/13/25

K - 4 - 1



K - 4 - 2



K - 4 - 3



K - 4 - 4



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

L - 1 - 1

CM20250113-01

City Manager General Updates

Administration - All
City Manager's Report

General updates as provided by the City Manager.

City Manager, Gregory Rose 1/13/2025





CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

UB20250113-01

Compensation Ordinance Adjustments

Amy Williams - Director of HR HR
Unfinished Business - Bill 9563 Yes

City Manager recommends updating the Pay Ordinance with the following changes: 
- Reclassifying one Assistant City Manager to Deputy City Manager, Support Services 
- Renaming the other Deputy City Manager/Director of Economic Development to Deputy City Manager, Development 
- Reclassifying Sanitation Superintendent to the Director of Sanitation 
- Reclassify one Economic Development Specialist to Economic Development Manager 
- Create a Third Ward Revitalization Coordinator

At the maximum salary level, the maximum fiscal impact potential could be up to:  
- $25,365 for the DCM, $23,335 for the Director of Sanitation, and $13,373 for the Economic Development Manager
- $116,243 for the Third Ward Revitalization Coordinator

0 NA

General Fund – 01 General Fund – 01

The proposed ordinance seeks to adjust the structure of the administrative team, by elevating one Assistant City Manager 
position to a Deputy City Manager overseeing IT, HR, Facilities and Communications. The DCM of Development will 
oversee Community Development, Public Works, Parks, and Planning and Zoning.  This proposal also creates a Sanitation 
Department with a Director that oversees that new Department and creates a Third Ward Revitalization position. 

The proposed changes to this ordinance seek to reclassify positions and add one position, 
mainly in an effort to restructure the administration with less Department heads reporting 
directly to the City Manager, and more focus and oversight on certain tasks and 
responsibilities

n/a

Bill No 9563

Employees

City Manager, Gregory Rose January 13, 2025

M - 1 - 1



INTRODUCED BY:  DATE:     December 9, 2024 

BILL NO.  9563 ORDINANCE NO: 

AN ORDINANCE FIXING THE COMPENSATION TO BE PAID TO 
CITY OFFICIALS AND EMPLOYEES AS ENUMERATED HEREIN 
FROM AND AFTER JANUARY 13, 2025, AND REPEALING 
ORDINANCE NO. 7360. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, 
AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  From and after January 13, 2025, City employees within the classified 
service of the City, hereinafter designated, shall receive as compensation for their services 
such amounts as may be fixed by the City Manager in accordance with Schedule A (Base 
Pay), included herein, with a salary not less than the lowest amount and not greater than 
the highest amount set forth in Schedule A, and shall additionally receive as compensation 
for their services such benefits generally provided in the Administrative Regulations and 
Civil Service Rules now in effect, all of which are hereby adopted, approved, and 
incorporated herein by this reference. 

M - 1 - 2



 

M - 1 - 3



 

 

 

M - 1 - 4



 

 

M - 1 - 5



M - 1 - 6



 
 

M - 1 - 7



 
 

 
 
 
 
 Section 2. From and after January 13, 2025, seasonal and regular part-time 
employees of the City may be employed at an hourly rate in accordance with the following 
Schedules B1 and B2 (hourly pay rates for regular part-time employees and seasonal 
employees, respectively).

M - 1 - 8



 

M - 1 - 9



 

 

M - 1 - 10



 

 
 

M - 1 - 11



 

 
 
Section 3. From and after on January 13, 2025, City employees in the unclassified service of the City, except as otherwise 

noted, shall receive as compensation for their services the amounts hereinafter set forth, or where a grade in salary is specified, 
such amounts as may be fixed by the City Manager within the specified grade in accordance with the following Schedule C (base 
pay rates for unclassified full-time, part-time, temporary or grant-funded employees) and shall additionally receive as compensation 
for their services such benefits generally provided in the Administrative Regulations now in effect, all of which are hereby adopted, 
approved, and incorporated herein by this reference.     

M - 1 - 12



 
 

 
 
 

 

M - 1 - 13



 

M - 1 - 14



Section 4. From and after January 13, 2025, all full-time non-executive, non-administrative 
or non-professional employees shall be subject to the work week or work cycle and 
regulations relating to overtime work, except as noted.  A listing of executive, administrative, 
and professionally designated employees or positions shall be issued by the City Manager. 

 
1. Department directors shall not be paid overtime nor receive compensatory time for hours 

worked in excess of 40 per week. 
 

2. Department directors may grant compensatory time on a straight time basis to their 
designated executive, administrative, or professional employees for hours worked in excess 
of 40 hours per week.  Such employees are exempt from Fair Labor Standards Act provisions. 
 

3. The normal work week for full-time office, field, maintenance, and non-commissioned police 
personnel, and for police and fire executive and administrative employees, is set at 40 hours 
per week.  

 
4. Hours worked in excess of 40 hours per week, when authorized in advance by department 

directors, may be paid at the rate of time and one-half or in lieu thereof, department directors 
in their discretion may grant compensatory time off also at the rate of time and one-half up to 
an accumulation allowable under Fair Labor Standards Act provisions.  

 
5. Hours worked in excess of 160 hours in a 28-day period by commissioned police personnel 

who are not exempt from Fair Labor Standards Act maximum hours provisions, when 
authorized in advance by the Police Chief, may be paid at the rate of time and one-half or in 
lieu thereof, in the Police Chief’s discretion, the Police Chief may grant compensatory time off 
also at the rate of time and one-half up to an accumulation allowable under Fair Labor 
Standards Act provisions. 

 
6. Hours worked in excess of 212 hours in a 28-day period by uniformed fire personnel who are 

not exempt from Fair Labor Standards Act maximum hours provisions, when authorized in 
advance by the Fire Chief, may be paid at the rate of time and one-half or in lieu thereof, in 
the Fire Chief’s discretion, the Fire Chief may grant compensatory time off also at the rate of 
time and one-half up to an accumulation allowable under Fair Labor Standards Act provisions. 

 
7. The average work week of Battalion Chiefs shall be 56 hours. They shall not be compensated 

for any hours in excess of 56 hours. 
 
Section 5.  
 

A. From and after January 13, 2025, the commissioned police personnel, in the pay grades 
shown, shall receive compensation for five years consecutive City service, with the exception 
of military leave of absence, in their present classification in the following amounts, from the 
sixth (6th) year through the seventh (7th) year: 
 

In Pay Grade     Monthly Amount 
      P-3  Police Sergeant  $63 
      P-4  Police Lieutenant    67 
      P-5  Police Captain      71  

 

M - 1 - 15



B. From and after January 13, 2025, the commissioned police personnel, in the pay grades 
shown, shall receive compensation for seven years consecutive City service, with the 
exception of military leave of absence, in their present classification in the following amounts, 
from and after the eighth (8th) year through the tenth (10th) year: 

 
In Pay Grade     Monthly Amount 
      P-2   Police Officer   $49 
      P-3  Police Sergeant  123 
      P-4  Police Lieutenant  132 
      P-4  Police Captain  142 

 
C. From and after on January 13, 2025, the commissioned police personnel, in the pay grade 

shown, shall receive compensation for ten years consecutive City service, with the exception 
of military leave of absence, in their present classification in the following amounts, from and 
after the eleventh (11th) year through the fourteenth (14th) year: 

 
   In Pay Grade       Monthly Amount 
   P-2  Police Officer   $80 
 
 

D. From and after on January 13, 2025, the commissioned police personnel, in the pay grade 
shown, shall receive compensation for fourteen years consecutive City service, with the 
exception of military leave of absence, in their present classification in the following amounts, 
from and after the fifteenth (15th) year: 

       
In Pay Grade       Monthly Amount 
      P-2  Police Officer            $92 

 
E. From and after January 13, 2025, Paramedic Firefighters and Paramedic Fire Captains, in 

the pay grades shown, shall receive compensation for seven (7) years consecutive City 
service, excepting military leave of absence, in their present classification in the following 
amounts, from the eighth (8th) year through the tenth (10th) year: 
 

In Pay Grade       Monthly Amount 
         F-1  Paramedic Firefighters $77 
         F-2  Paramedic Fire Captains   86 
 

F.  From and after on January 13, 2025, Paramedic Firefighters and Paramedic Fire Captains, in 
the pay grades shown, shall receive compensation for ten (10) years consecutive City service, 
excepting military leave of absence, in their present classification in the following amounts, 
from the eleventh (11th) year through the twentieth (20th) year: 

 
 In Pay Grade       Monthly Amount 

          F-1  Paramedic Firefighters $133 
          F-2  Paramedic Fire Captains   133 

 
 
 

 

M - 1 - 16



G. From and after on January 13, 2025, Paramedic Firefighters and Paramedic Fire Captains, in
the pay grades shown, shall receive compensation for twenty (20) years consecutive City
service, excepting military leave of absence, in their present classification in the following
amount, from the twenty-first (21st) year:

In Pay Grade   Monthly Amount 
F-1 Paramedic Firefighters $168 
F-2 Paramedic Fire Captains   168 

For the purpose of calculating consecutive service in this section, time served in the 
classifications of Firefighter and Paramedic Firefighter is combined for the same person.  

Section 6. From and after January 13, 2025, all full-time employees shall have their 
hourly rate computed as follows: 

1. The hourly rate for all full-time employees, who, according to Section 4, have a set or
average work week of 40 hours, shall have their hourly rate computed by multiplying
the monthly rate by 12, dividing that product by 2,080.

2 The hourly rate for full-time Paramedic Firefighters, Paramedic Fire Captains and
Battalion Chiefs of the Fire Department, shall have their hourly rate computed by
multiplying the monthly rate by 12, dividing that product by 2,912.

Section 7. Ordinance No. 7360 and all ordinances in conflict herewith are repealed. 
Ordinance No. 7040 shall remain in effect in full force and unchanged.  

Section 8. This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from its passage as provided 
by law. 

PASSED and ADOPTED this ______ day of_________, 2025. 

MAYOR 
ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK 

CERTIFIED TO BE CORRECT AS TO FORM: 

CITY ATTORNEY 

M - 1 - 17



M - 1 - 18


	2024-12-09 Draft Reg Minutes.pdf
	Blank Page

	K2 - ALL- Office 365 Renewal.pdf
	COPY
	Untitled
	Blank Page

	L1 - ALL - City Mgr General Updates - Cover.pdf
	COPY
	Blank Page

	M1 - All _CompOrd_Dec2024_2.pdf
	Bill 9563 - Compensation Ordinance and Pay and Classification Plan_Dec2024_2.pdf
	1. Department directors shall not be paid overtime nor receive compensatory time for hours worked in excess of 40 per week.
	2. Department directors may grant compensatory time on a straight time basis to their designated executive, administrative, or professional employees for hours worked in excess of 40 hours per week.  Such employees are exempt from Fair Labor Standards...
	3. The normal work week for full-time office, field, maintenance, and non-commissioned police personnel, and for police and fire executive and administrative employees, is set at 40 hours per week.
	4. Hours worked in excess of 40 hours per week, when authorized in advance by department directors, may be paid at the rate of time and one-half or in lieu thereof, department directors in their discretion may grant compensatory time off also at the r...
	5. Hours worked in excess of 160 hours in a 28-day period by commissioned police personnel who are not exempt from Fair Labor Standards Act maximum hours provisions, when authorized in advance by the Police Chief, may be paid at the rate of time and o...
	6. Hours worked in excess of 212 hours in a 28-day period by uniformed fire personnel who are not exempt from Fair Labor Standards Act maximum hours provisions, when authorized in advance by the Fire Chief, may be paid at the rate of time and one-half...
	7. The average work week of Battalion Chiefs shall be 56 hours. They shall not be compensated for any hours in excess of 56 hours.
	B. From and after January 13, 2025, the commissioned police personnel, in the pay grades shown, shall receive compensation for seven years consecutive City service, with the exception of military leave of absence, in their present classification in th...
	C. From and after on January 13, 2025, the commissioned police personnel, in the pay grade shown, shall receive compensation for ten years consecutive City service, with the exception of military leave of absence, in their present classification in th...
	D. From and after on January 13, 2025, the commissioned police personnel, in the pay grade shown, shall receive compensation for fourteen years consecutive City service, with the exception of military leave of absence, in their present classification ...

	1. The hourly rate for all full-time employees, who, according to Section 4, have a set or average work week of 40 hours, shall have their hourly rate computed by multiplying the monthly rate by 12, dividing that product by 2,080.

	Blank Page
	M1 - Cover Sheet.pdf
	COPY


	K4 - ALL  - 2025 Tree Trimming.pdf
	COPY
	Blank Page

	K3 - ALL  - Ameren Service Easement.pdf
	6801 Delmar Blvd-EASEMENT-(12-12-24).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Easement


	Blank Page
	K3 - Cover Form  - Ameren Service Easement.pdf
	COPY


	K1 - ALL - For the 3rd Ward Plan.pdf
	Blank Page
	K1 - Cover Form - For the 3rd Ward Plan.pdf
	COPY





